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the Commercial Trollers Salmon Stamp; 
stocking of steelhead from the Mad 
River Hatchery into the Mad River 
Basin; CDFG’s Aquarium in the 
Classroom program; stocking actions to 
support scientific research; and stocking 
done under an existing private stocking 
permit or to be completed under a new 
permit with terms similar to one that 
was issued in the last 4 years. The 
Fishing in the City and Classroom 
Aquarium Education Programs will 
continue under uniform protocols 
developed to ensure that stocking 
locations are properly screened to 
protect native, sensitive, and legally 
protected species. 

Continuation of Existing Program 
Alternative 

The Continuation of Existing Program 
Alternative (equivalent to the CEQA No 
Project Alternative) is continuation of 
SFRA funding for the existing Fish 
Hatchery and Stocking Program. The 
hatcheries’ operation and stocking 
activities undertaken by CDFG over the 
past 5 years would continue unchanged 
(some activities may be inconsistent 
with the court-ordered prohibitions and 
exceptions), and the SFRA funding 
process for these activities will continue 
as it has over the same period. 

No Action Alternative 

Under the No Action Alternative, 
FWS would not approve SFRA grant 
funds to be used by CDFG to support 
actions associated with operations of the 
CDFG Fish Hatchery and Stocking 
Program. Because of State statutory and 
public trust requirements related to the 
hatchery program, CDFG would attempt 
to continue to implement its State 
hatchery program, seeking other funding 
sources to replace the Federal funds. 

Authority: National Environmental Policy 
Act (42 U.S.C. 4321 et seq.); Regulations for 
Implementing the Procedural Provisions of 
the National Environmental Policy Act (40 
CFR 1500–1508). 

Dated: December 16, 2009. 
Ren Lohoefener, 
Regional Director. 
[FR Doc. 2010–2509 Filed 2–4–10; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4310–55–P 

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 

Bureau of Land Management 

[LLCOS00000 L1120 PH] 

Notice of Public Meeting, Southwest 
Colorado Resource Advisory Council 
Meeting 

AGENCY: Bureau of Land Management. 

ACTION: Notice of public meeting. 

SUMMARY: In accordance with the 
Federal Land Policy and Management 
Act (FLPMA) and the Federal Advisory 
Committee Act of 1972 (FACA), the U.S. 
Department of the Interior, Bureau of 
Land Management (BLM) Southwest 
Colorado Resource Advisory Council 
(RAC) will meet in March 2010. 

DATES: A Southwest Colorado RAC 
meeting will be held March 5, 2010. 

ADDRESSES: The Southwest Colorado 
RAC meeting will be held March 5, 
2010, at the Devil’s Thumb Golf Course 
at 9900 Devil’s Thumb Drive, Delta, CO 
81416. The Southwest Colorado RAC 
meeting will begin at 9 a.m. and adjourn 
at approximately 4 p.m. A public 
comment period regarding matters on 
the agenda will be at 2:30 p.m. 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Lori 
Armstrong, BLM Southwest District 
Manager, 2505 S. Townsend Avenue, 
Montrose, CO; telephone 970–240–5300; 
or Erin Curtis, Public Affairs Specialist, 
2815 H Road, Grand Junction, CO, 
telephone 970–244–3097. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The 
Southwest Colorado RAC advises the 
Secretary of the Interior, through the 
Bureau of Land Management, on a 
variety of public land issues in 
Colorado. 

Topics of discussion for all Southwest 
Colorado RAC meetings may include 
field manager and working group 
reports, recreation, fire management, 
land use planning, invasive species 
management, energy and minerals 
management, travel management, 
wilderness, land exchange proposals, 
cultural resource management, and 
other issues as appropriate. 

These meetings are open to the 
public. The public may present written 
comments to the RACs. Each formal 
RAC meeting will also have time, as 
identified above, allocated for hearing 
public comments. Depending on the 
number of persons wishing to comment 
and time available, the time for 
individual oral comments may be 
limited. 

Dated: January 22, 2010. 

Lori Armstrong, 
Southwest District Manager, Designated 
Federal Officer, Southwest Colorado RAC. 
[FR Doc. 2010–1895 Filed 2–4–10; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE P 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION 

[USITC SE–10–001] 

Government in the Sunshine Act 
Meeting Notice 

AGENCY HOLDING THE MEETING: United 
States International Trade Commission. 
TIME AND DATE: February 12, 2010 at 11 
a.m. 
PLACE: Room 110, 500 E Street, SW., 
Washington, DC 20436, Telephone: 
(202) 205–2000. 
STATUS: Open to the public. 
MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED:  

1. Agenda for future meetings: none. 
2. Minutes. 
3. Ratification List. 
4. Inv. Nos. 701–TA–474 and 731– 

TA–1176 (Preliminary) (Drill Pipe from 
China)—briefing and vote. (The 
Commission is currently scheduled to 
transmit its determinations to the 
Secretary of Commerce on or before 
February 16, 2010; Commissioners’ 
opinions are currently scheduled to be 
transmitted to the Secretary of 
Commerce on or before February 23, 
2010.) 

5. Outstanding action jackets: None. 
In accordance with Commission 

policy, subject matter listed above, not 
disposed of at the scheduled meeting, 
may be carried over to the agenda of the 
following meeting. 

By order of the Commission. 
Issued: February 2, 2010. 

William R. Bishop, 
Hearings and Meetings Coordinator. 
[FR Doc. 2010–2630 Filed 2–3–10; 11:15 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Notice of Lodging of Consent Decree 
Under the Clean Air Act 

Under 28 CFR 50.7, notice is hereby 
given that on Thursday, January 21, 
2010, a proposed Consent Decree in 
United States, et al. v. Lafarge North 
America, Inc., et al., Civil Action No. 
10–CV–00044, was lodged with the 
United States District Court for the 
Southern District of Illinois. 

In a complaint that was filed 
simultaneously with the Consent 
Decree, the United States seeks 
injunctive relief and penalties against 
Lafarge North America, Inc., Lafarge 
Midwest, Inc. and Lafarge Building 
Materials, Inc. (collectively ‘‘Lafarge 
Companies’’), pursuant to Sections 
113(b) and 167 of the Clean Air Act 
(‘‘the Act’’), 42 U.S.C. 7413(b) and 7477, 
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for alleged environmental violations of 
the Prevention of Significant 
Deterioration (‘‘PSD’’) provisions of the 
Act, 42 U.S.C. 7470–7492; the 
nonattainment New Source Review 
(‘‘nonattainment NSR’’) provisions of the 
Act, 42 U.S.C. 7501–7515; and the 
federally-approved and enforceable state 
implementation plans, which 
incorporate and/or implement the above 
listed federal PSD and/or nonattainment 
NSR requirements. The Complaint also 
alleges violations of Title V of the Act, 
42 U.S.C. §§ 7661–7661f, and Title V’s 
implementing Federal and State 
regulations. These violations are alleged 
to have occurred at one or more of each 
of the Lafarge Companies’ Portland 
cement plants located in Alpena, 
Michigan; Ravena, New York; Tulsa, 
Oklahoma; Fredonia, Kansas; Sugar 
Creek, Missouri; Buffalo, Iowa; 
Paulding, Ohio; Gand Chain, Illinois; 
Seattle, Washington; Whitehall, 
Pennsylvania; Harleyville, South 
Carolina; Atlanta, Georgia; and Calera, 
Alabama. 

Under the proposed settlement, the 
Lafarge Companies will be required to 
implement pollution control 
technologies to reduce emissions of 
nitrogen oxides and sulfur dioxide at 
designated cement kilns and to meet 
emission limits which are either set 
forth in the Consent Decree or will be 
set later by following procedures 
specified in the Decree. In addition, the 
Lafarge Companies must pay a total civil 
penalty of $5,075,000. Two-thirds of 
this penalty ($3,383,000) will be paid to 
the United States, and the remaining 
one-third will be shared among the 
participating states and agencies as set 
forth in the Consent Decree. 

The States of Alabama, Illinois, Iowa, 
Kansas, Michigan, Missouri, New York, 
Ohio and the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania Department of 
Environmental Protection, the South 
Carolina Department of Health and 
Environmental Control, the Washington 
State Department of Ecology, the 
Oklahoma Department of Environmental 
Quality, and the Puget Sound Clean Air 
Agency have joined in this settlement as 
signatories to the Consent Decree. 

The Department of Justice will receive 
for a period of thirty (30) days from the 
date of this publication comments 
relating to the Consent Decree. 
Comments should be addressed to the 
Assistant Attorney General, 
Environment and Natural Resources 
Division, and either mailed to 
pubcomment-ees.enrd@usdoj.gov or 
mailed to P.O. Box 7611, U.S. 
Department of Justice, Washington, DC 
20044–7611, and should refer to United 

States, et al. v. Lafarge North America, 
Inc., et al., D.J. Ref. 90–5–2–1–08221. 

The Consent Decree may be examined 
at the Office of the United States 
Attorney, Nine Executive Drive, 
Fairview Heights, Illinois 62208–1344 
and at U.S. EPA Region 5, 77 West 
Jackson Blvd., Chicago, Illinois 60604– 
3590. During the public comment 
period, the Consent Decree may also be 
examined on the following Department 
of Justice Web site, http:// 
www.usdoj.gov/enrd/ 
Consent_Decrees.html. A copy of the 
Consent Decree may also be obtained by 
mail from the Consent Decree Library, 
P.O. Box 7611, U.S. Department of 
Justice, Washington, DC 20044–7611 or 
by faxing or e-mailing a request to Tonia 
Fleetwood (tonia.fleetwood@usdoj.gov), 
fax number (202) 514–0097, phone 
confirmation number (202) 514–1547. In 
requesting a copy from the Consent 
Decree Library, please enclose a check 
in the amount of $38.00 (25 cents per 
page reproduction cost) payable to the 
U.S. Treasury or, if by e-mail or fax, 
forward a check in that amount to the 
Consent Decree Library at the stated 
address. 

Maureen Katz, 
Assistant Section Chief, Environmental 
Enforcement Section, Environment and 
Natural Resources Division. 
[FR Doc. 2010–2489 Filed 2–4–10; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4410–15–P 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Drug Enforcement Administration 

Importer of Controlled Substances; 
Notice of Registration 

By Notice dated January 9, 2009, and 
published in the Federal Register on 
January 21, 2009, (74 FR 3641), Kenco 
VPI, Division of Kenco Group, Inc., 350 
Corporate Place, Chattanooga, 
Tennessee 37419, made application by 
renewal to the Drug Enforcement 
Administration (DEA) to be registered as 
an importer of Nabilone (7379), a basic 
class of controlled substance listed in 
schedule II. 

The company plans to import the 
listed controlled substance for 
distribution to its customers. 

One comment was received 
concerning this application. The 
comment states that DEA added 
Schedule II and the drug code for 
Nabilone (7379) to Kenco VPI’s importer 
registration without the benefit of the 
required legal process for modifying the 
DEA registration. The comment further 
states that, after Kenco VPI was properly 
registered as an importer of Nabilone on 

November 1, 2006, there was no further 
mention of Nabilone in any subsequent 
notices of Kenco VPI’s applications or 
approval of its applications published in 
the Federal Register by DEA until the 
application published on January 21, 
2009. (74 FR 3641) The comment also 
requested clarification whether Kenco 
VPI imports Nabilone in finished drug 
product in dosage form or in bulk active 
pharmaceutical ingredient (API) form. 
Finally, the comment inquires if the 
aggregate national quota for Nabilone 
established by DEA will be affected by 
Kenco VPI’s application. 

DEA’s response to the issues raised in 
the comment are as follows: DEA has 
already admitted that Kenco VPI’s 
importer registration received Schedule 
II and the drug code for Nabilone 
without the benefit of the required legal 
process. On August 1, 2006, a Notice of 
Application (71 FR 43526) was 
published for Kenco VPI in the Federal 
Register. Subsequently, on November 1, 
2006, a Notice of Registration (71 FR 
64298) was published. These notices 
addressed DEA’s issuance to Kenco 
VPI’s importer registration of Schedule 
II and the drug code for Nabilone 
without the benefit of the required legal 
process. As a result of the publication of 
these notices, Kenco VPI’s importer 
registration has been legally authorized 
to import Nabilone, effective: November 
1, 2006. 

DEA rejects the comment’s assertion 
that, between November 1, 2006 and 
January 21, 2009, there was no further 
mention of Nabilone in any subsequent 
notices of Kenco VPI’s applications or 
approval of its applications published in 
the Federal Register by DEA. This 
assertion is incorrect. Four notices were 
published between November 1, 2006 
and January 21, 2009 as follows: (71 FR 
66974, November 17, 2006), (72 FR 
8792, February 27, 2007), (73 FR 14840, 
March 19, 2008), (73 FR 31510, June 2, 
2008). Each of these notices mentions 
Nabilone. 

With regard to the comment’s request 
for clarification of whether Kenco VPI 
imports Nabilone in finished drug 
product in dosage form or in bulk active 
pharmaceutical ingredient (API) form, 
the company imports finished drug 
products in dosage form only. Kenco 
VPI does not import Nabilone in bulk 
active pharmaceutical ingredient (API) 
form. Since there are no domestic 
sources of Nabilone in finished drug 
product form available within the 
United States and since the product 
which Kenco VPI imports has been 
approved for medical use within the 
United States by the U.S. Food and Drug 
Administration, DEA finds no reason to 
reject Kenco VPI’s application. The 
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